​​Framework for Associate Pools – FAQ’s

1. How do we submit tender responses
Please email your tender response to people@uksport.gov.uk. Please send a pdf version of your proposal and include any links to video or evidence of prior work within your response.
2. Are there any further tender documents or template forms that need to be completed
There are no further tender documents. Please base your tender responses/proposal on the areas outlined in the information on the webpage. There are no forms or templates that need to be completed.
3. What is the timeline for any clarification questions.
Clarification questions must be received before 11.59pm on 29 October. Responses will be posted on 31 October in this document.
4. Are there any word or page limits
Please review the tender award criteria
5. Are there any specific evidence or case studies of relevant work
Case studies should highlight examples of previous work that might be relevant to the specification outlined in the description.















Clarifying questions and responses
General tender queries
1. Is there a word or page limit to Part 1 of the Experience and Essential criteria for any of the 4 lots?
[bookmark: _Hlk212570236]There is no word/page limit to part 1 of the experience and essential criteria, please respond as appropriate to meet the elements described.
2. Word Count Limits - Aside from the specified word limits for case studies, EDI, and added value sections listed on the tender webpage, there are no word or page limits mentioned in the FAQ or award criteria. Could you clarify whether UK Sport has any expectations or guidance regarding the overall length of the proposal?
There is no word/page limit to part 1 of the experience and essential criteria, please respond as appropriate to meet the elements described
3. In addition to the framework maximum word count allocation, it seems there is no limitation to how we present for tender? Is that the case, or are you only wanting to receive tenders in the framework format only (that being experience and evidence, cost of service and, EDI & sustainability
There are no limitations on how the tender is presented, there is a word count shared within the initial tender and the assessment criteria that are listed are what the tender will be awarded against. Therefore, the inclusion of additional sections may be at the detriment to the award criteria and thus may impact your assessment score.
4. Are there any further documents that need to be included or considered
All of the information provided is contained within the web page. There are no further bid forms or ITT documents, please design your response based on the criteria outlined for each lot.
We have provided the basis for scoring tender in the associated tender documents sections
5. Company Credentials - The tender documents do not request company details, for example registration details, insurance and so on. Will these be verified at a later stage, or should we include them in our proposal?
Yes we will verify these as part of the contracting phase
6. Supplier Eligibility & Intent - Is this tender primarily intended to onboard existing or known suppliers within UK Sport’s network, or is it open to new entrants who meet the specification?
This is an open tender process, open to new entrants
7. I would like to request further information regarding the “Associate pools to support the Coaching, Leadership, Talent and Culture Teams in their work with Olympic and Paralympic performance programme”. Could you advise of the next steps please.
The next steps are captured in the tender document, each lot will require a submission and the criteria is collated in alignment with each lot. 
8. Are you specifically seeking new coaches to refresh the pool, or coaches experienced in delivering executive coaching for you, or do you have no preference?
No preference, this is an open tender process
9. How many individuals are you seeking to provide services to as part of the contract each year?
The support associates offer to sport is emergent and not currently known. We will utilise the associate pools as and when appropriate work 
10. Which sports will be included in this contract?
Olympic and Paralympic sports – you can view the sports we fund here - https://www.uksport.gov.uk/our-work/investing-in-sport 
11.  Are you looking for one off sessions or a programmatic approach to the design?
This depends on the Lot and the requirement from the sport – it may be one a one off, it may be a number of sessions or it may be programmatic
12.  I live abroad but travel frequently back to the UK frequently and can be flexible in working. Is there any reason why I cannot apply for this tender given I live overseas? 
The contract location is UK only
13.  Are individuals able to contract personally, or must all associates operate through a limited company?
Individuals are able to be contracted as a sole trader or through a company
14. Who owns the intellectual property in materials we develop under the framework and what data protection measures will UK Sport require (especially for coaching notes and diagnostics data)?
We would agree this under each contract

Rates and budgets – please see the ‘tender criteria’ document that is uploaded with all for the day rates
1.  Will the day/session rates quoted in the tender act as a fixed ceiling, or can they vary by project scope?
The day and session rates quoted are benchmark rates that we expect people to submit a response against.
2. Please provide the costing table template referenced in the notice and confirm if you require separate PDFs for each lot. 
There is a document titled ‘Tender Criteria’, this outlines the benchmark rates per lot.
3. Could you give more details on how you would evaluate the costings. i.e Is there movement on the Day/hourly rate depending on credentials on individuals.
We will assess responses against the benchmark rate shared in the criteria
4. In the advertisement it references “Prices are determined on the costing tables that are laid out as an attachment to this tender”. Yet I cannot see any such attachment. Without this I cannot get a feel for the pricing and therefore complete the tender. 
There is a document titled ‘Tender Criteria’, this outlines the benchmark rates per lot.
5. Each opportunity suggests the value of each piece of work. Is this annually or across the four year period?
It is the estimated 4 year spend.
6. How much of the budget is allocated towards design and how much for delivery?
​We haven’t allocated budget against design or delivery as work is emergent and based on the needs of the sport. It is anticipated that the value of pieces of work will be less than £30,000, with the majority of contracts below £10,000. Work will be awarded directly, with the project or programme lead engaging with the appropriate pools and individuals. People can be awarded multiple contracts which run at the same time over the tender period

Number of suppliers and awards	
1. How many suppliers does UK Sport anticipate appointing per lot and how will work be distributed among them? 
The total number of suppliers is not limited within the framework nor the lots themselves. The work will be distributed based on the needs of each call off contract, this will be based upon professional opinion. 
2. How many suppliers will be appointed to the associate pools, and how many successful suppliers are expected for each lot?
There is no cap on the total framework nor the individual lots. Suppliers that exceed the benchmark for each lot will be awarded a place, this score will be evident in the assessment summaries that are sent to unsuccessful suppliers.
3. Is there an estimated no. of leaders total and approximate numbers by sport?
No, the work is emergent and dependant on the needs of the sports
4. Is there an indication of the expected frequency and volume of call-off work within each lot. This will help potential associates understand the likely level of engagement and plan capacity accordingly.
We are unable to give an expected frequency and volume as the work and requirements are emergent
5. What is the expected scale and frequency of assignments e.g. Number of leaders, typical engagement duration (so we can work out how many associates to put forward...)
This will vary across each lot and it is not possible to share further detail at this time. 

Tender content queries
1. Will Executive Coaching experience in high pressure environments (which are not sport related) also be considered relevant experience?
Yes
2. What would constitute added value for you – for example, innovative approaches, fee rate, or anything else?  And how would that added value be demonstrated by reference to your weightings if they don’t already appear in the weightings (which is the case for innovative approaches, for example)
Added value will be assessed in several ways and would be evidenced through the lens of delivery or development support in high performance environments.  
3.  Would UK Sport welcome the inclusion of metrics or qualitative data demonstrating system-level learning and behavioural change, beyond immediate team outcomes? 
Yes
4. For case studies that involve confidential coaching work, is anonymised data acceptable if outcome measures (themes, metrics, or testimonials) are included? 
Yes
5. How will reflective or qualitative evidence (e.g., shifts in self-awareness, team climate, or trust) be scored alongside quantitative outcomes? 
Both will be reviewed together and a score will be given taking into account with both elements
6. What protocols would you like us to adopt for detailing the contact details of submitted staff? We could include these as part of an opening pen portrait / biography but are happy to take UK Sport’s advice on the method that will work best for it.
The contact details of submitted staff should be included as part of the tender within the opening biography. The submitted staff will be assessed on an individual basis through the tender application they relate to.
7. What levels of public liability, professional indemnity and safeguarding vetting will be required for associates working on site? 
It is expected that all successful providers will have public liability insurance, professional indemnity and safeguarding assurance in place before confirmation of their inclusion on the framework
8. It mentions we can include three case studies of 500 words each; can you confirm if that is in addition to a narrative response that summarises our breadth and depth of experience?  Or is our response limited to these three case studies only?
The case studies are related to Part 2 and is in addition to Part 1 and are designed to allow you to show evidence of impact - Please demonstrate the impact of your professional practice in relevant contexts and domains for the Associate - Support for Executive Leadership in High Performance Sport role.
9. Could you share what has characterised the most successful associate or supplier partnerships with UK Sport to date - for example, the qualities, approaches, or ways of working that have had the greatest impact? Understanding this would help us reflect these partnership qualities in our proposed approach and ensure strong alignment with UK Sport’s expectations.
These elements have formed the criteria for assessment, please use these as guidance.
10. Is there a shared model/framework for leadership development across the LTCC programme that Associates are expected to align to?
Key philosophies and approach to learning and development will be shared with successful submissions. 

Locations
1. We do have one key question. For the 1:1 Coaching - can this be done virtually?
Yes, the way coaching is delivered can be determined by the coach and coachee
2. It isn't clear whether delivery would be conducted virtually or face to face.  If virtually are there specific platforms that the provider would need to use? If face to face, does the benchmark costing include or exclude travel and subsistence, and what are the anticipated locations for delivery?
Delivery could be delivered virtually or in person. The requirements of the work will determine how/where the work is delivered. The benchmark costs to not include travel and subsistence – these costs would be paid in line with UK Sports Travel and Subsistence guidelines

Multiple associates/ organisation tenders
1.   If as an organisation we put forward (for example) 5 potential associates, is the organisation's appointment to the framework based on the average of the 5 potential associates scores or is each associate scored on their own merits, and even if only one associate selected, the organisation is then appointed to the framework?
A single associate or organisation may tender for one, multiple, or all roles - provided they demonstrate the required capability and experience. Each individual put forward for an associate pool(s) will be assessed on their unique skills and experience. Any organisation applying for the associate pool(s) will be required to put forward a full body of evidence against the assessment criteria for each member of the team they are proposing.
If one associate is successful it is that associate that will be selected to join the pool not the company.
2.  If we are responding as an organisation, are the EDI and Sustainability responses required for each person, or can these be the same across the organisational?
For organisations responding with multiple people the EDI and Sustainability sections can be submitted once – each individual assessed from the organisation will then be given the same assessed score for this criteria
Where there are multiple people from one organisation applying, the submission for EDI and Sustainability can be provided for the organisation and assessed on the basis of the organisation ie with one score for all providers per organisation. For this criteria there will be a separate scoring matrices for individuals and companies to ensure fair assessment
3. Team Composition & Evidence – The listing refers to assessing individuals based on their skills and experience, would it be helpful to include CVs? 
Yes, each individual put forward for an associate pool(s) will be assessed on their unique skills and experience. Any organisation applying for the associate pool(s) will be required to put forward a full body of evidence against the assessment criteria for each member of the team they are proposing
4. As an organisation with multiple executive coaches, culture and senior leadership development experts are we able to apply as an organisation putting forward a selected pool of suitably qualified and experienced individuals, assuming that we do ensure that we demonstrate how individuals meet the person specification / requirements for the relevant Lot and provide suitable case study evidence etc. for the proposed individuals?
We will assess each individual put forward therefore it is anticipated the experience and essential criteria would be a bespoke response for each individual.
5.  If we are able to apply as an organisation, is it permissible for us to respond to the questions relating to Added Value, EDI and sustainability as the organisation once within our proposal (rather than for each individual that is proposed). 
Yes, it would be OK to responds to these sections as a company
6. If our submission as a Company should include full details for each individual as well as the advantages offered by the group?
Yes to both points. 
7. May we submit blended associate teams (e.g., psychologist, military leader, and business executive coach) under one lot, provided each meets the essential criteria, or must individuals be assessed in isolation? 
Individuals will be assessed in isolation, but if a tender is submitted as a pair this pair will be treated as one submission.
8. Can associates deliver through a team-of-two model (e.g., pairing a psychologist and a former military leader) for complex culture or leadership assignments under one call-off? 
Yes and for further information, if associates are tendering as a pair then that is one tender and will be assessed based on that tender. If one of those individuals then wants to tender independently that is treated as a separate tender
9. Do all members of an application have to be from the same institution?
Individuals can represent different institutions
10.  Can an application be made from a combination of institutions (e.g., two or three universities)?
Yes, a combined tender for a group is accepted as one tender 
11.  If the members must be from the same university, can sub contractors be employed if a particular project is awarded?
Possibly, this would be explored on a case by case basis
12. In cases where an application is made by a large organisation, are you happy to accept Equality, Diversity and Inclusion statements that are based on publicly stated corporate values and policies? Or are you looking for person-specific statements?
Yes, organisational statements are fine
13. In cases where an application is made by a large organisation, are you happy to accept Sustainability statements that are based on publicly stated corporate values and policies? Or are you looking for person-specific statements?
Yes, organisational statements are fine
14. Are you willing to consider pairs of consultants or even teams who work collectively on the same project and within the specified financial benchmarks?
Yes, we can accept pairs as one tender, the group put forward will be assessed as one tender application, if the individuals also wish to be put forward this will need to be done as a separate tender.
15.  We will be putting forward individuals and their credentials - does the decision go by individual? i.e. you may choose to accept 4 out of 5 individuals we put forward?
Yes

Qualifications and experience
1.  Can UK Sport confirm whether multidisciplinary experience (e.g., combining military, sport, and commercial leadership expertise) will be viewed favourably within the Culture & Senior Team Leadership and Executive Leadership lots - and if so, how should this be evidenced in the submission? 
This should be evidenced within the experience and essential criteria. It could be included in the experience section or in one of the case studies
2. The document specifies qualification requirements for professional coaching and states "or equivalent". Can you provide examples of what might be categorised as an equivalent and whether this is equivalency in qualification only or if an equivalency of experience can be validated through proper evidence? 
It is equivalency in qualification only – we anticipate those responding to lot 1 to be qualified and insured executive coaches 
3. Where a practitioner holds HCPC registration and a postgraduate qualification in sport and performance psychology but not EMCC/ICF accreditation, will this be accepted as equivalent for Lot 1 if supervision and CPD can be evidenced?  
Accredited executive coach (EMCC, ICF, AoEC, or equivalent) at a senior practitioner level or above.
4. If associates possess multiple accreditations (e.g., EMCC Senior Practitioner, BPS Chartered Psychologist), should both be listed, or does UK Sport have a preferred hierarchy of evidence? 
No preferred hierarchy please provide all evidence
5. Can case studies from military and commercial sectors be used to demonstrate leadership and culture impact where principles directly transfer to high-performance sport? 
Yes
6. Do you require successful provider to have qualifications in safeguarding? 
Providers will be expected to have the relevant accreditation and professional assurance to deliver support.   

Travel and Subsistence – We have attached the UK Sport travel and subsistence policy along with this document.
1. Are costs inclusive or exclusive of expenses?
Costs are exclusive of expenses – UK Sport pays expenses in line with their T&S policy 
2. Will travel and subsistence expenses be recoverable on top of the day/session rates? If yes, under what policy and caps? 
Yes, travel and subsistence will be paid in line with UKS travel and subsistence policy
3. Expenses. We assume that the financial benchmarks refer to the amount payable in respect of staff time. What mechanism is there within the tender for necessary expenses such as travel, accommodation and subsistence to be recouped?
Expenses will be paid in line with UK Sports T&S policy, that will be attached alongside this document.
4. Are travel and expenses paid in addition to day rates or expected to be absorbed within them?
Travel and expenses are paid in addition to the day rates, in line with UK Sports T&S policy

Next stages in the tender
1. Will UK Sport facilitate any induction or networking sessions to help associates connect with sport programme leads, or is relationship building entirely self-led? 
Yes, we will also ask those that are successful to produce bios and a short video that will help programme leads understand expertise and ways of working.
2. Are contracts always let by UK Sport or can national governing bodies draw directly from this framework? 
We can suggest people from the associate pools for work being directly contracted by sports if the sport asks us for advice
3. For call offs below £30k, will assignments be awarded based on the CVs of named individuals or will we need to submit a short proposal and price each time? What is the expected turnaround time for responding to a call off? 
​​It is anticipated that the value of pieces of work will be less than £30,000, with the majority of contracts below £10,000. Work will be awarded directly, with the project or programme lead engaging with the appropriate pools and individuals. People can be awarded multiple contracts which run at the same time over the tender period.
4. For call offs over £30k, will the mini competition use the same 70/20/10 weighting, and will additional criteria be shared with all suppliers? 
Yes same weighting. When the mini competition arises we will share the additional criteria with those in the lot, the expectation is this will be one or two additional requirements for the specific piece of work.
5. Are multi-associate collaborations encouraged for complex assignments (e.g., pairing an executive coach and culture facilitator), or are call-offs typically individual? 
This has happened with some of the development work we have done before where an SLT development programme alongside executive coaching has been deployed.
6. Process for post tender - is there expectation of a presentation, or is the pdf submission the only stage?
The PDF submission is the only stage
7. Will contracts only be awarded to Very Good or / and Excellent submissions
Contracts will be awarded based on a scoring benchmark that is set by the assessment team. This will be circulated as part of the assessment summaries.
8. Will work be awarded by UK Sport directly, or can other agencies within the system (UKSI, NGBs, etc.) call off from the framework?
Yes the work will be awarded by UK Sport directly
9. If we are accepted, could we look to submit new individuals who may join the organisation during the period of the assignment - what would the process be?
We will reopen the tender once within the first 3 years for new individuals
10. Appreciating that this is a call off contract and therefore there is no guarantee of any hours, conversely, is there an anticipated amount of days that are expected? I ask for several reasons.
We are unable to give an expected frequency and volume as the work and requirements are emergent

Lot 1
1. For Lot 1, what accreditation level constitutes “senior practitioner or above” (e.g. EMCC Senior Practitioner, ICF PCC)? 
We would anticipate people being able to evidence either their qualifications or experience to the level outlined in the criteria 
2. How will success and impact be evaluated for the exec coaching support? Are there defined outcomes of performance indicators?
Through the contracting phase, impact and success will be agreed and triangulated with the line manager, review points will also be confirmed
Lot 2
1. Have you an estimate for the number of Teams in Lot 2?
No, the work is emergent and dependant on the needs of the sports

Lot 3
1. Regarding Lot 3, is this intended for sport-related coaching or non-sport coaching?
Sport related coaching
2. For Lot 3, is CIMSPA accreditation or endorsement a mandatory requirement for certain assignments or just desirable? 
CIMSPA accreditation is a desirable criteria
3. Lot 3. We would appreciate some further clarification on what you anticipate will be included in the scope of the professional development for coaches.
Associates supporting coaching in high-performance sport will plan for, implement, and sustain interventions that support coaches' learning and professional development, with a focus on the demands of a coach's role, their prior experience, and an awareness of context.  Associates' work is educational, developmental, caring and support-oriented, with the current and anticipated, future needs of the coach in mind.  Interventions could include the development of pedagogical skills, behavioural strategies for building effective and ethical relationships, and developing habits of mind to support coach's as self-directed learners.  

Lot 4
1. For Lot 4, is CIPD Level 5 mandatory or will equivalent experience be accepted? 
Relevant professional qualifications in Human Resources, Recruitment, or Organisational Development (e.g., CIPD Level 5 or equivalent) is essential. CIPD level 5 is an example of a type of qualification we would be expecting to see
2. In Lot 4, when you refer to ‘Talent’ does this refer solely to talent in the sense of staff to support Olympic and Paralympic Programmes rather than talent in the sense of athletic talent?
Yes, this refers to Talent in the workforce and not within the athlete cohort. 
3. Lot 4: We would like to clarify whether the definition of roles and job descriptions, together with the development of corresponding competency frameworks, are considered to be within scope e.g., for critical positions such as the Performance Director and Head Coach, in order to inform the design of recruitment processes and support the optimisation of the overall organisational structure.
Yes, this would be considered as part of the package of support. 
4. Lot 4. We would also like to understand if performance management is included in the development of the wider system talent strategy and if the system will apply to leadership roles only or will include the wider coaching and performance teams.
This will be considered and revisited as the talent strategy evolves to meet the needs of the sporting community.  
5. Can I raise some queries in line with the tender process please. These queries relate to Lot 4. Associate - Recruitment & Talent Management Support:
 An example of the accountabilities required includes, “Build hiring capability across the system by offering tools, guidance, and education to NGB leaders and hiring managers.” Where you specify tools – does this mean that you would require the successful provider to provide the NGB with technology tools for recruitment, such as an Applicant Tracking System? 
This may be required in certain instances and would be explored on a case by case basis
6. Can you confirm the maximum day rate (8 hours) £650 + VAT for Lot 4?
This is correct
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